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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (/f known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

George Carrington Mason described St. George's Church in its original
form as ''one of the quaintest and most interesting colonial church
buildings in Virginia." 1Its original appearance is known through an
1819 drawing by Reverend James Wallis Eastburn. The drawing, which
appeared as a frontispiece for a volume of Eastburn's poems, was
described by Mason as follows:

Pongoteague Church was built in the form of a Latin ]
cross and had a semicircular apse, with a conical top, at the
east end. Perhaps the most distinctive feature of its

design was a hipped gambrel roof, ending in a gable in

way of the apse. The two wings forming the transept

were of equal length and the chancel and nave slightly
longer, and this shape, in connéction with that of

the rounded apse, brought the building the irreverent
nickname of '"The Ace of Clubs Church."

Because of heavy damage suffered during the Civil War, the only remaining
original portions of St. George's Church are the north and south walls,
and the end bays of the east and west walls. During the renovation
following the war, the nave and chancel were torn down, and the left-
over bricks were used to close up the openings between the wings or
transepts; the existing north and south walls are the ends of the
transepts. Although the south wall has been disfigured by the closing

up of the semicircular arched opening over the door, the original
"brickwork of the south wall ranks among the most beautiful examples

of colonial Flemish bond in the country. The clear blues of the glazed
headers contrast strongly with the rich reds of the stretchers and the
rubbed corner bricks. The much patched and repaired sections of original
brickwork in other parts of the church are also laid in Flemish bomd but
with random glazing. The brick below the bevelled water table is laid in
unglazed Flemish bond. o

The church is now covered by a pedimented gable roof with a simple belfry.
The pediment, cornice, windows, and all other wood trim date from the
post-Civil War renovation and are in a simple Greek Revival style. The
dimensions of the present form of the building are 57'-3" north-to-south,
| and 25'-3" east-to-west. A modern, one-story colonial-style parish hall
stands to the east of the church., The burying ground to the southeast

of the church contains stones bearing the names of many prominent Eastern
i Shore families, but none of the stones appear to be colonial,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. George's Church was known as Pungoteague Church until 1800 when the
name was changed to conform with St. George's Parish, created out of the
lower portion of Accomack Parish in 1762, The date of erection of the
present, though now much altered church has been the subject of controvers
it is thought to have been built in 1738, replacing perhaps two earlier
structures on, or near, the site. An Accomack County Court entry for
October 3, 1738, states that "An Assignment of all Tobacco &c to be levied
for Building of Pungoteague Church From John Snead Gentleman to William
Andrews was proved in the Court by the oath of Peter Bodwin a Witness there
and Admitted to Record."

As originally built, St. George's Church was a most unusual and picturesque
Latin cross-shaped structure. It continued in regular service through

the eighteenth century, but was abandoned during the War of 1812, Restored
to, use seven years later, it served its parishioners until the Civil War,
when Federal troops desecrated the church. They used the main part of

the bulldlng for a stable, and raided one of the w1ngs for bricks to

build a cook house. Following the war, St. George's stood as a roofless
ruin until 1880, when parts of the transepts were renovated to serve as

the main body of the church. In 1905, some of the older parlshloners

made depostions before the United States Court of Claims in a SUlt to
secure damages for the desecration.

Although only a small portion of the original building survives, the
largely intact south wall stands as one of the most beautiful and perfect
panels of colonial Flemish bond with glazed headers in the country. St.
George's is one of only two colonial churches remaining on Virginia's
Eastern Shore. As a relic on a site held sacred since the mid-seventeenth
century, the church is a significant religious landmark.
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